BINDURA UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE EDUCATION



FACULTY OF COMMERCE

AN ANALYSIS OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT IN GAS INDUSTRIES. A CASE STUDY OF BOC GASES.

SUBMITTED BY

FELIX TANAKA GOMWE

B1850837

A RESEACH PROJECT SUBMITTED TO BINDURA UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE EDUCATION IN PARTIAL FULFILLMENT OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF BACHELOR OF ACCOUNTANCY HONOURS DEGREE.

JUNE 2022

Approval

I. To be completed by the student:

I, certify that this dissertation meets the preparation guidelines as presented in the Faculty Guide and

Instructions for Typing Dissertations

(Signature of Student) (Date)

II. To be completed by the Supervisor:

This dissertation is suitable for submission to the Faculty

This dissertation should be checked for conformity with the Faculty guidelines

(Signature of Supervisor) (Date)

III. To be completed by the Chair of the Department:

I certify, to the best of my knowledge, that the required procedures have been followed and the

Preparation criteria have been met for this dissertation.

(Signature

of the Chairman) (Date)

Release Form

NAME OF AUTHOR: B1850837

TITLE OF DISSERTATION: AN ANALYSIS OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF WORKING CAPITAL MANAGEMENT IN GAS INDUSTRIES. A CASE STUDY OF BOC GASES<u>.</u>

DEGREE TITLE: Bachelor of Accountancy Honours degree.

YEAR THIS DEGREE GRANTED: 2022

Permission is hereby granted to the Bindura University of Science Education library to produce copies of this dissertation and to lend or sell such copies for private, scholarly or scientific research only. The author does not reserve other publication rights and the dissertation nor may extensive extracts from it be printed or otherwise reproduced without the author's written permission.

Date.....

Signed.....

Acknowledgments

i i i

First and foremost, I would like to thank the Lord Almighty for strengthening me and making this research possible. Secondly I would like to applaud my supervisor Mr Hove for his guidance and mentorship from the start to the end. I would like to thank Bindura University for giving me the opportunity to partake on a research topic which I believe will add value to the business world. Lastly but not least, I want to appreciate my family and friends for their undying support.

Abstract

This research aims to investigate and analyse the effects of working capital management on companies in the gas industry precisely focusing on BOC Gases as a case study. The research further goes to analyse effects of current COVID-19 pandemic on working capital management policies and the hyperinflationary environment gas companies are operating in. The results show that gas companies adopted a moderate-conservative strategy for their working capital management. Furthermore, the evidence confirms that COVID-19 pandemic crisis did not change Working Capital Management strategies significantly but raised cash inflows instead. Companies like BOC Gases that have high financial security as a result of the higher liquidity ratio, quick and (CCC) have tried to lure more customers by increasing the trade receivables due date in order to improve sales performance and also lower the liabilities turnover to work with more suppliers. However, due to inflation BOC Gases has been more generously granting more trade credit to clients buying in foreign currency because our local currency is quickly getting eroded.

Table of Contents

Approval	i
Release Form	ii
Acknowledgments	iii
Abstract	iv
Table of Contents Error! Bookmark not d	efined.
List of Figures	ix
List of Tables	1
Chapter 1	2
1.1 Introduction	2
1.2Background and justification of the study	2
1.3 About BOC gases.	3
1.4 The research problem	4
1.5 Objectives of the study	4
1.6 The research question	5
1.6.1Sub questions	5
1.7Significance of the study	5
1.7.1 To the researcher	5
1.7.2 To the university	6
1.7.3 To the organizations	6
1.8 Assumptions	6
1.9 Limitations	6
1.10 Research challenges	6
Chapter 2	7
Literature review	7
2.1 The need for working capital	7
2.2 What is working capital?	7
2.2.1There are two concepts of working capital management	
2.3 Business liquidity versus business solvency	
2.4 Management of working capital various techniques	8
2.4.1 Levels:	8
2.5 Relevance and applicability if working capital ratios	9
2.5.1 EFFICIENCY RATIOS	9
2.5.2 Liquidity ratios	10
2.6 Working capital cycle	11

2.7 Working capital components	12
2.7.1 receivables management	12
2.7.2 Company Credit Management	. 12
2.7.3 Determining Credit Worthiness	. 12
2.7.4 Credit Sale terms	. 13
2.7.5 Debt management and collections system	13
2.7.6 Debt Factoring	. 14
2.8 Management of inventory items.	14
2.8.1 Objectives of inventory management	15
2.8.2 Inventory management strategies	. 17
2.8.3 Mini Max Inventory method	18
2.8.4 The ABC system	20
2.8.5 The Just In Time System (JIT)	20
2.9 Cash management	21
2.9.1 The importance of managing cash	21
2.9.2 Methods of Easing Cash Shortages	. 22
2.9.3 Cash collections and acceleration of collections	23
2.9.4 Concentration banking	23
2.9.5 Establishing a lock-box system	. 24
2.9.6 Investing idle cash- Cash management models	24
2.10 Accounts Payable Management:	27
2.11 Working capital management in hyper inflation	27
2.12 Poor management of working capital.	28
2.12.1 Symptoms	28
2.13 Impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on Working Capital Management.	29
2.14 Review of the empirical evidence.	. 29
2.15 Conclusion	30
Chapter 3	31
Research Methodologies	31
3.1 Introduction	31
3.2 Research design	. 31
3.3 Methods of collecting data	. 32
3.3.2 Interviews	32
3.4 Secondary sources	.33
3.4.1 Advantages of secondary sources	.33

3.5 Population	
3.6 Case Study Sample	
3.7 Pilot Testing	
3.8 Data Validation	
3.9 Data Analysis and Presentation	
3.10 Conclusion	
Chapter 4	
Data Presentation, Analysis and Discussion	
4.1 Introduction	
4.2 Response rate	
4.2.1 Data interpretation	
4.3 Cash flow forecast results	
4.3.1 Data interpretation	
4.3.2 Data Analysis	
4.4 Cash management	
4.5 Cash management strategies	
4.5.1 Data Interpretation and analysis	
4.5.2 Problems encountered at BOC Gases in cash management.	
4.6 Debtors	
4.7 How often BOC Gases receives payment from its accounts receivables	
4.7.1 Data interpretation	
4.7.2 Data analysis	
4.8 Creditors	
4.9 Inventory	
Models Number of departments rate	
4.9.1 Data interpretation	
4.9.2 Data analysis	
4.10 Problems encountered in managing inventory	
4.11 Conclusion	
Chapter 5	
Summary, Conclusions and Recommendations	
5.1 Introduction	
5.2 Summary of the Findings	
5.3 Recommendations	

- v i i

5.3.2 Measures to Improve Working Capital Management
5.3.3 Solutions to the problems hindering Gas manufacturers and retailersto achieve efficient working capital management
5.4 In light of cash management, how appropriate are theoretical methods of managing working capital to the gas businesses in Zimbabwe?:
5.5 Working capital management in hyperinflation environments
5.6 Causes of poor performance with regard to working capital management
5.7 Policy implication
5.8 Conclusion
BIBLIOGRAPHY
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Questionnaire
Appendix 3
INTERVIEWS

v i i i

List of Figures

Figure 2. 1 Graphical representation of the E.O.Q model
Figure 3. 1 showing the sample of the population in the research
Figure 4. 1 Chart showing how BOC Gases can accurately forecast cash needs
Figure 4. 3 showing the frequency at which BOC Gases chases for payment
Figure 4. 4 chart showing how often BOC Gases receives payments from debtors
Figure 4. 5 showing the inventory techniques employed by various departments

List of Tables

Table 4. 1 response rate	. 38
Table 4. 2 Cash Flow	38
Table 4. 3 showing percentage of use of Baumol and Miller-Orr model.	40
Table 4. 4 showing the trade terms offered by creditors	. 44

Chapter 1

1.1 Introduction

Cash is the life blood of a business, no matter how much profit an industry makes it can only spend cash and not profit. Working capital is business cash that is needed for day to day operations and working capital management refers to the control of short term possessions and short term liabilities, so as to reduce the risk of bankruptcy and increase the return on assets (Salehi et al, 2019). Components of short term assets include inventories, loans and advances, debtors, short term investments and cash balances. Short term liabilities include creditors, trade advances, borrowings and provisions. Due to the high inflationary environment, a gas company needs to maintain an optimum level of debtors, creditors and cash to maintain its financial strength. The recent COVID-19 pandemic needed effective management of working to able to withstand continuity in gas companies.

Management of working capital seeks to ensure that a company can continue operating and has the resources necessary to pay off both current debt and anticipated operational expenses. At a broader note, liquidity is closely related to the concept of working capital but they differ (Tandoh, 2020). A business keeping high level of inventories and accounts receivables seems viable but creditors do not take inventories and accounts receivables as payment. Cash is needed primarily to support the day-to-day financial operations of an organization; this involves the procurement of raw materials, the payment of salaries, wages, telephone bills and other business expenses, and the financing of credit sales.

1.2Background and justification of the study

Just as circulation of blood is crucial in the human body for maintaining life, so is working capital for the smooth running of business. Many organisations that are profitable on paper are forced to cease trading due to an inability to meet short-term debts when they fall due. A business may be quite viable, yet it still has the potential to fail if it lacks the cash or liquidity necessary to pay its essential bills. The press is constantly reporting of companies that shutting down as a result of liquidity and insolvency problems as a result of poor working capital management.

This study on working capital management has been an effort to increase returns on capital, deliver enough cash flow to cover investments and dividends. This will strengthen the balance

sheet to prevent a lower credit rating. Due to the high inflation rates, the cost of holding cash in largely increasing and credit sales are coming at a very huge expense. In order to remain in business it is essential that an organisation successfully manages its working capital. Too often however, this is an area which is neglected by the management thus the company will unexpectedly face liquidity problems, gas and fuel prices have become very volatile and companies in this sector should be very cautious in their capital allocation strategies (Ebben and Johnson, 2011). The research therefore will attempt to encourage management to effectively manage its working capital and highlight the advantages and disadvantages of it with much emphasis on how it can help reduce insolvency and should maintain very conservative price outlooks that should insulate planning from recent price shifts.

It is very crucial to manage the company's working capital as cash generated from the working capital cycle differs with profit generated from the business. Without adequate cash/liquidity, profitable companies cannot survive as they need to pay their liabilities from cash and not from profit. Working capital is great importance to small companies trying to achieve market penetration (Dankiewicz and Zimon, 2020).

The research mainly focuses on gas companies in the gas and fuel industries. Companies in the gas industries provide vital products that play a pivotal role in the economy, these products range from medical oxygen, industrial CO2, liquid nitrogen, army jets high flying nitrogen and cooking gas which has become a cheap and clean source of energy. Therefore, the study of working capital management will help them to withstand the heat in this high inflationary environment and cater for the unexpected price increases and reductions. The continuity of gas companies is of great importance to consumers and the nation at large.

1.3 About BOC gases.

BOC Zimbabwe, trading as BOC GASES is Zimbabwe's market leader in gases and welding products and has operated in Zimbabwe since 1927, operating 5 branches. BOC is wholly owned by the Linde group, one of the world's leading gases companies, with its headquarters in domiciled in Munich, Germany. BOC Zimbabwe's Air Separation Unit in Harare has 120 employees, and operates through its distribution network of 5 branches in the major industrial cities of Harare, Bulawayo, Gweru, Mutare and Kwekwe and other several Distributors and Agencies. BOC is regionally supported by Linde Group sister companies in 17 Africancountries with AFrOX in South Africa as the regional Head Office. This significant geographic presence throughout Africa is important in that gives supply and service guarantee

based on the synergies created by intercompany support between the different countries. BOC Zimbabwe has 3 main business streams:

- Packaged gases and products
- Bulk gases
- Hard goods (welding equipment, Accessories and consumables)

BOC gases has invested considerably in resources to support these three business portfolios. The investment covers Air Separation Unit plants; Pressure Swing Adsorption plants, Cylinders, road tankers, Trailers and Trucks. This investment is BOC GASES' commitment to sustain its superior customer service in as much as it is a commitment to grow the Gases and Welding business in the markets we operate. Production of Dissolved Acetylene, Oxygen, Nitrogen and Argon is done in Harare whilst production of Vitemax, a general purpose is done in Gweru. LiquefiedPetroleum Gas, Carbon Dioxide, Specialty are purchased from our sister company, AFROX, in South Africa.

1.4 The research problem

Working capital and liquidity problems have negatively hit BOC GASES; the company is failing to receive payments from debtors in time and is continuously writing off bad debts. As a result, BOC GASES is failing to settle its short term obligations and maintain operating expenses such as truck tolling fees, weekly wages, telephone bills and electricity needed to run the plan. This eventually jeopardises the quality of medical oxygen and service delivery to all consumers. The failures are directly attributed to management failing to maintain the optimum level of major components of working capital such as inventory, debtors, creditors and cash to quench the liquidity crunch especially in a high inflationary environment. It is at this level that this study seeks to analyse the importance of working capital management in a gas company to resolve all the highlighted problems.

1.5 Objectives of the study

The following objectives will be accomplished through the use of secondary data made up of information from information-forecast publications and relevant entity journals, as well as primary data that entails the use of questions and in-depth interviews.

- To assess the goals of managing working capital and the degree to which these goals are being met at BOC GASES.
- ✤ To explain the notion of liquidity and bankruptcy.

- To outline the difficulties gas businesses are having managing their working capital and suggest some potential solutions.
- To determine the viability of various model strategies for working capital management and the effect they have on the overall performance of gas manufacturing and retail enterprises.
- To investigate the impact of hyperinflation on the management of working capital policies.
- To determine the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on working capital of Gas Companies.

1.6 The research question

To what extent can good working capital management improve the operations, increase firm value and insulate a company from inflation.

1.6.1Sub questions

- What are the problems encountered by company in trying to effectively manage its working capital and how can these problem be minimized?
- How can working capital management reduce insolvency in gas industries?
- What are the effects of poor working capital management?
- What are the problems encountered by company in trying to effectively manage its working capital and how can these problem be minimized?
- What policies can be employed in gas manufacturing companies to effectively manage its working capital in high inflationary economies?
- What strategies can be put in place to ease the problem of working during the Covid19 pandemic?

1.7Significance of the study

1.7.1 To the researcher

The research project is carried out in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the Bachelor of AccountancyHonours Degree at Bindura University of Science Education. This research will give the researcher an opportunity to integrate the theoretical practice gained in class and practical hands on experience. An in depth understanding and appreciation of the concept working capital management will be gained by the researcher practically.

1.7.2 To the university

The information from this study may help other academics by serving as a resource on effective capital management and its significance in reducing insolvency in the economy while also offering a course of thought to successful students. The recommendation's success will be identity and give future endeavors more confidence.

1.7.3 To the organizations

Organisations in the gas manufacturing and retail industry can incorporate some of the issues highlighted in the research to aid in their operations and benefit. The issue of working capital management applies to all industries be it big or small and private or public companies, all can learn the major components of working capital management. Depending on the nature of the industry, firms can insulate against the high inflation rate pandemic hitting our country by maintaining optimum working capital.

1.8 Assumptions

- That the information obtained by the researcher is free from bias and window dressing.
- That the sample selected is representative of the whole population
- That all the respondents will respond in time with true and accurate data.

1.9 Limitations

The research will be carried out under the following drawbacks:

- The researcher is limited by financial constrictions to explore all areas of study.
- The researcher is limited due to the COVID-19 pandemic restrictions.
- The researcher is limited by the time frame within which this project has to be conducted and presented.
- respondents may be unwilling to cooperate or respond due to work pressure or confidentiality reasons.
- Some information desired might not be released as such information may be deemed highly confidential to the company

1.10 Research challenges

- reporting using different multicurrency reduces consistency in report figures.
- Internet and network problems.

Chapter 2

Literature review

This chapter is a review of working capital literature written by other scholars. The researcher appreciates what other authors, previous publications, journals and websites educate about working capital management globally and locally. In order to get an in-depth understanding of the effectiveness of working capital in gas and other key industries, it is necessary to incorporate what other researchers have found during their researches.

2.1 The need for working capital

For continuity and profit making, BOC Gases has to invest funds in to current assets so as to generate sales. In most cases goods sold do not instantly realise into cash, therefore, sufficient working capital provides back up to sustain operations and sales activity. Tandoh

(2020) is of the cash is needed to finance labour and production overheads needed to convert WIP into finished goods. Finished goods will convert to sales in the form of sundry debtors and which will in turn convert to cash after agreed credit period. WIP and sundry debtorshold cash in the operating cycle; therefore sufficient working capital management is needed to backup operations.Liabilities alsoaid in maintaining liquidity and the amount required to be invested in these current assets is always higher than the funds available from current liabilities. This is the most important reason for the need for working capital (Oseifuah, 2018).

2.2 What is working capital?

Working capital is the necessary funding needed to pay short term debts, cover day to day operations and finance current assets. It ensures that a company operates efficiently by monitoring and using its current assets and liabilities to their most effective use.

Working capital is the amount by which current assets exceed current liabilities. It should be kept at a satisfactory level and optimum mix of current assets and current liabilities. Appropriate sources of funds are working capital funding should be used and short term obligations satisfied in time.

According to James S. Signer-"Surplus of current assets over short term current obligations".

According to Bhalla V.K-"The vitality of the company is required for day-to-day operations, and excess capital assets (cash, accounts receivables, inventories) outweigh excess capital

liabilities (amounts owing to employees and others, such as salaries and wages payable, accounts payable, and taxes owed to the government).

2.2.1There are two concepts of working capital management

2.2.1.1 Gross working capital

Is the sum of all current assets of company at a given point in time easily convertible to cash within a period of one year. It includes accounts receivable, cash and bank balances, short marketable securities and inventory of WIP and finished goods.

2.2.1.2 Net working capital

Net working capital is the aggregate amount of all current assets and current liabilities. It is a measure of the short term liquidity of a business and can also be used to obtain a general impression of the ability of company management to utilize assets in an efficient manner. It is the net of current assets minus current accounts payable.

2.3 Business liquidity versus business solvency

Liquidity is defined as a company's capacity to pay its debts as they become due and the speed at which an asset can be converted into cash at a moment's notice. Baveld (2012) explains that it is an entity's strength to pay its liabilities on time, current assets and large amounts of cash are reflectors of high liquidity.

Solvency refers to the business long term financial position, meaning the business has positive net worth. Basically it is a financial situation in which total assets exceed total liabilities by a significant amount, which paints a positive picture about the going concern status of an entity.

Solvency risk is the risk that the business cannot meet its financial obligations as they come due for full value even after disposal of its assets. A business that is completely insolvent is unable to pay its debts and will be forced into bankruptcy (Dalci and ozyapici, 2018).

2.4 Management of working capital various techniques.

2.4.1 Levels:

- a) Ratio analysis aids in identification of poor performing areas which need closer management attention in the management of a firm's cash, inventory and accounts receivables.
- b) All aspects of working capital can be analyzed and managed individually using various techniques.

2.5 Relevance and applicability if working capital ratios.

ratio analysis helps to identify the performance of a company in terms of profitability, liquidity and efficiency either individually or in relation to other similar companies. It uses immediate past ratio and historical market data to help forecast the future(Hu and Schwarz, 2011).

2.5.1 EFFICIENCY RATIOS

Efficiency ratios measure a company's ability to use its assets to generate internally.

2.5.1.1 Working capital turnover ratio

Working capital turnover ratio is a ratio that measures how efficiently a company is using its working capital to support sales and company growth. It is also referred to as net sales to working capital and shows the relationship between the funds used to finance a company's operations and the revenues a company generates to continue operations and turn profit. Net Annual Sales

Average working capital

A high turnover ratio generally portrays that management is efficiently using short term assets and liabilities to support sales.

2.5.1.2 Inventory turnover ratio

Inventory turnover ratio depicts how efficient the firm is in producing and selling its products. It is the rate at which inventory stock is sold, used and replaced in a given time period. The formula is:

Cost of goods sold

Average inventory

This helps a gas company to make better decisions on pricing, manufacturing, marketing and purchasing new inventory. A high inventory turnover ratio implies two things either strong sales or insufficient inventory quickly being depleted. Whereas, a lower turnover implies weak sales or excess inventory. In a gas company such as BOC in context, a lower inventory turnover is not so bad particularly due to inflation when prices are expected to rise and gas products do not decay.

2.5.1.3 receivable turnover ratio

Gross sales

Average account receivables

Gross sales are inclusive of excise duty and scrap sales because both may enter in to receivables by credit sales. It takes you on average x days to collect monies due to you. If your official credit terms are 45 day and it takes you 65 days then you'll have to analyse why that is so. One or more large or slow debts can drag out the average days. Effective debtor management will minimize the days.

2.5.1.4 Current assets turnover ratio

This measures the efficiency of a company's ability to use current assets to generate revenue in its operations. A higher current assets turnover indicates efficient use of current assets in generating revenue or sales and on the other hand a lower ratio indicates a problem with one or more current assets. Obsolete inventory or a lower sales drive by management and sales persons.

Total Annual Sales

Total Current assets

2.5.2 Liquidity ratios

These are ratios used mainly by prospective creditors and lenders to assess the ability of a company to pay off its short-term debts by looking at liquid assets.

2.5.2.1 Current ratio

This ratio compares current assets to current liabilities to see if they are sufficient current assets to cover short term liabilities. It is just a picture of how current assets would pay current liabilities if they were liquidated and its major flaw is the inclusion of inventory which cannot be liquidated over night. A greater ratio is more desirable as it shows current assets are able to cover liabilities.

Total Current assets

Total Current liabilities

A ratio of 2:1 between assets and liabilities is typically seen as appropriate. The client ratio reveals a company's market liquidity and capacity to satisfy customers. Acceptable customer settings vary by industry. A corporation is generally thought to have solid short-term financial strength if its client assets are in this range.

Low values for the customer of fast ratios (values less than 1) suggest that a company would struggle to meet its debt obligations. Low values, however, do not necessarily point to a political issue. In order to fulfill its contractual responsibilities, an organization may be able to borrow against its strong long-term prospects. Some business kinds typically operate with a client ratio of less than one.

Holding other things constant, a creditor, who is expecting to be paid in the next 12 months, would consider a high current ratio to be better than a low current ratio, because a high current ratio means that the company is more likely to meet its liabilities which fall due in the next 12 months.

2.5.2.2 The Quick ratio

This depicts the company's strength to meet its current obligations with its most liquid assets and therefore subtracts inventory from current assets. It is more oftenly referred to as the acid test ratio.

Current asset – Inventory

Current liabilities

Quick ratio portray that a company has sufficient high liquid assets for the payment of current liabilities. An acid test ratio of 1:1 is standard and ideal but a ratio of more than 1:1 is more ideal over the period of time.

2.5.2.3 Absolute liquid ratio

Debtors and bills receivables are considered as more liquid then inventories, but they cannot be liquidated to cash immediately or in time. Absolute liquid assets take into account cash in hand, cash at bank and marketable securities (Zimon, 2020). The most desirable and optimum value for this ratio should be **1:2.** It indicates that 50% liquid can cover in full current liabilities. An absolute liquid ratio below **1:2** indicates poor cash management. Absolute liquid assets

Current liabilities

2.6 Working capital cycle

Basically Working capital is the period of time it takes a business to convert net working capital, like current assets and liabilities into cash. A long cycle frankly indicates that capital is being tie up for longer periods of time without generating a return. Short cycles mean you are able to free up cash faster with a quicker return turnaround time (Chang et al. 2020).

Working capital cycle focuses on four key elements and a gas company needs to have control over these components.

- 1. Debtors
- 2. Creditors
- 3. Stock
- 4. Cash and bank balances

WCC formula= inventory turnover days + debtors turnover days - creditors turnover

2.7 Working capital components

2.7.1 receivables management

This generally refers to the planning and controlling of debt owed by customers on account of a good or service provided on credit terms. Accounts receivable are outstanding invoices or monies which are still yet to be paid by a company' customers. Liquid cash is needed all the time for the smooth running of operations in a gas company, thus it is of vital importance to collect trade receivables on time. Credit policies, payment plans, sending payment followups and timely collection of debts are of vital pivotal importance in controlling accounts receivables.

Management of receivables is a tedious task in a large company like BOC Gases that is the sole provider of medical and industrial gases in the whole country. Public entities such as hospitals procure medical oxygen on credit terms and taking into account inflation this is not viable for a gas company.

2.7.2 Company Credit Management

Trade credit is done on agreement that a customer can purchase goods or services and pay at a later date. This is an effective tool to encourage sales and stimulate business growth but this exposes a business to the risk of late payment or bad debts which disrupts the cash flow position of an entity. Determining a customer's credit worthiness before giving out credit is of paramount importance to insulate a company against financial risk.

2.7.3 Determining Credit Worthiness

Credit worthiness refers to the ability of a customer to pay a company before giving out credit. To safeguard a business from late or non-payment on invoices, it is important to use the correct procedures and tools to thoroughly check the credit worthiness of a customer before extending credit. Ways to check to check foe credit worthiness of a customer:

- Assess a company's financial health data. request and go through a customer's audited financial performance from prior periods.
- review a Business credit score by running a Credit report. Use online platforms such as Fincheck to get credit rating report for a customer. This report details a business's ability to make payment based on past history and public records.
- Ask for references. This involves getting in touch with the customer's bank as well as business's or suppliers that are already giving credit to the subject.
- Calculate the Customer's Debt-to-equity ratio.Get to know which portion of a customer's debts make up its earnings. Divide the customer's monthly debt payments by gross monthly income, a lower ratio is advisable.

2.7.4 Credit Sale terms

Credit sales area accompanies by credit terms. These show when payment is due for credit sales, possible discounts, applicable interest rates and late payment of fees. A credit sale maybe 3/10, net 30 meaning that the credit period is 30 days, However if a customer pays within 10, a 3% discount will be given.

A cash discount is an incentive given to the customer by the buyer for paying an invoiced bill before the due date. This encourages debtors to pay their outstanding amounts on time, reduce the working capital cycle as cash will be received earlier due to reduced length of time and boost up in sales as customer will be attracted by the cash discount. On the other hand, cash discounts lead to a reduction in profits. An effective annual rate is the annualised implied cost of forgoing the discount, calculated by using the following formula:

Discount % X 365

Effective rate = 1-Discount % (Credit period – discount period)

The goal of debtors' management is to ensure that all transactions result in timely cash flows. If the amounts owed to a party are reduced, cash inflows can be increased.

2.7.5 Debt management and collections system

2.7.5.1 Collection policy

Debt collection is an essential ingredient of effective cash flow management for company's offering trade credit.

After giving credit it becomes of paramount importance to make sure payment is received on time, according to agreed dates.Below are the most popular ways of debt following procedures

- Implement a reminder service- continuously reminding your customers before payment falls due maybe helpful in getting payment earlier.
- Offering a range of payment methods- give room for flexibility on payment methods, entity's operate differently and therefore it is necessary to allow customers to pay using electronically, cash, bank transfers, zipit and many more.
- Contact the right person- This applies most importantly to large organisation with a higher chain of command. The person who processes payments maybe different from the person who authorises them, therefore it is necessary to be in contact with the right person.
- Personal site visits- this is more common and useful, visiting the customer leads to more understanding and good customer relations as the outcome is produced quickly on site.
- Outsource debt collection- engage debt collection agencies if customers are not responding to your notices, they will collect the debts on your behalf but the methods used by them might damage relationships with customers.
- Legal action-if a solution can be not reached between the two parties, legal action becomes an option. This option is advisable if the amount involved is significant becomes it has costs attached to it such legal fees and the customer might declare bankruptcy without resolution.
- Declare bad debtor- if the customer cannot be traced or found, declare them as bad debts and write them off if necessary.

2.7.6 Debt Factoring

This is a short term working capital financing method in which a company sells its outstanding invoices to a third party at discounted price so to as avoid the heft waiting times associated with invoice payments. This helps temporarily in improving cash flow and saves time but on the other hand leads to a reduction in profits by selling prices at a discounted price.

2.8 Management of inventory items.

Inventory is a current asset item which can be divided into the following:

- raw Materials
- ➢ Work-in-progress
- Finished goods
- ➢ Materials and supplies

From a financial point of view, inventory is defined as the sum total of raw materials and supplies, including spares, semi-processed material or work in progress and finished products. Inventory is a significant part of current assets and forms an integral component of working capital management. It's a process with begins with inventory control and involves the timely purchase, proper storage and efficient utilisation to maintain an even and orderly flow of finished goods to meet timely commitment by the business. This process avoids excess working capital in holding of inventory as that will result in a delay in cash conversion cycle and eliminate the risk of obsolescence.

2.8.1 Objectives of inventory management

- To have stock available as and when they are required so as to keep the customer happy and maintain good relations with him.
- To make use of storage space while preventing stock levels from going beyond the limit of the space.
- To keep inventories' assets properly accountable.
- To distribute, item by item, for each end point and each amount necessary to ensure that the overall result is consistent with the intent and goal of inventory control.
- To keep low investment in inventories carrying cost an obsolesce losses to the minimum.

Finding the ideal amount of inventory while minimizing inventory expenditures is the goal of inventory management. Inventory management is primarily about specifying the size and placement of stocked goods. Inventory management is required at different locations within a facility or within multiple locations of a supply network to protect the regular and planned course of production against the random disturbance of running out of materials or goods.

The definition of inventory management includes the subtle distinctions between replenishment lead time, carrying costs of inventory, asset management, inventory forecasting, inventory valuation, inventory visibility, future inventory price forecasting, physical inventory, available physical space for inventory, quality management, replenishment, returns and malfunctioning goods and demand forecasting. In order to maintain optimal inventory levels, these opposing necessities must be balanced. This process is on-going

as the business needs change and respond to the wider environment. Inventory management entails a retailer trying to acquire and maintain a stock of merchandise while keeping overhead expenditures like warehousing, shipping, and handling in mind. Systems and processes that pinpoint actual and projected inventory status, create goals, provide replenishment approaches, and identify inventory equipment. Takes care of all tasks related to the handling and management of material (Tandoh, 2020). This would involve the keeping track of products that are moved into and out of stockroom locations as well as balancing the inventory. ABC analysis, lot tracking, cycle counting support etc, are possible additions. Managing of inventories, with the primary goal of determining/controlling levels of stock inside the geographical distribution function in order to strike an equilibrium between the demand for product availability and the need to reduce overstocking and handling expenses. The foundation of quantitative decision models is inventory costs, which are often split into designing costs and carrying costs.

- Ordering costs The total fixed costs that are incurred each time an item is ordered make up this amount. They are related to the amount of consumed calories but primarily to the physical activity needed to process those calories. They are sometimes referred to as stock acquisition charges. The primary elements are:
- Costs related to purchasing, accounting, and items received depatriations that are legal and administrative in nature;
- • The setup and tooling expenses related to each production step when goods are internally manufactured.
- Delivery and handling fees
- Goods insurance in Transit
- Any fees that must be paid in the event of an audit

Carrying costs : The expense of keeping inventory on hand is referred to as carrying costs or holding costs. It mostly consists of investment-related costs and storage costs. The primary elements of it are:

- Interest on capital invested in the stocks;
- Storage charges (rent, lighting, heating, refrigeration, air-conditioning and others);
- Warehouse manpower, equipment maintenance and running costs;

- Handling costs;
- Audit, stocktaking or perpetual inventory costs;
- Insurance, security and others;
- Deterioration and obsolescence and
- Pilferage, vermin damage and others

2.8.2 Inventory management strategies

The reduction of both manufacturing and shipping costs is the aim of inventory management. The more orders are placed, the higher the order-processing costs are while the caging costs are lower, suggesting that these costs are inversely related to the quantity of orders placed.

Therefore, it is crucial to position an optimization that reduces both optimization and carrying costs at a point when the two costs are reduced. This aids in determining the maximum stock holding level at which stock out costs are kept to a minimum.

The amount of inventory you should keep on hand to ensure supply continuity in the case of an uncharacteristic decrease in demand or lead time must be known in order to manage your inventory properly. The term "safety stock" refers to this amount of inventory. Although there isn't a universally accepted formula for determining safety stock quantity, Puch Tips offers a "risk averse" approach.

Secondly, you must know when to reorder materials for inventory. typically, this moment is determined when the amount of materials in stock declines to a specific level, or the reorder point."

 $\Gamma P = SSQ + (QUDX ALT)$

Where SSQ stands for Safety Stock Quantity

QUD stands for Quantity used daily

Average Lead Time in Days is referred to as ALT.

Thirdly, you must be aware of how much to order. The Economic Order Quantity, or EOQ, is determined by a challenging mathematical equation. The equation takes into account the tension that exists between acquisition costs and inventory carrying costs: when you order large amounts less frequently, your acquisition costs are low but your inventory costs are high because of high inventory levels. Inversely, because you are spending more resources on

manufacturing, your acquisition costs are higher when you produce small quantities more frequently. The optimal quantity (EOQ) is that which minimizes the total of these two costs. The following strategies have been put forth to try and accomplish the aforementioned goals:

- The economic output amount (E.O.Q)
- The ABC method
- Just-in-time delivery (JIT)

2.8.3 Mini Max Inventory method

This model is designed to determine the ideal quantity of oil that will reduce the expenses of oil extraction and caging. It is sometimes referred to as the economic oil quantity. It is an accounting technique that determines the lowest level of total cost related to designing, producing, and maintaining inventory.



Economic Order Quantity

Source: Frank Woods (2015)

Figure 2. 1 Graphical representation of the E.O.Q model

When the selling cost and holding cost intersect on the gap, the overall cost is at its lowest, making this quantity the most cost-effective to sell. As an example from the previous example

20D E 🛛



500 units make up the E.O.Q . The fundamental EOQ formula is: Where; O = fixed expenses per unit

D = number of units in per unit time (annum)

H stands for the annual cost of keeping one item in stock for a year.

E = Quantity of units per economic unit of measure.

To determine how much to order, the use of this equation is essential. It makes the supposition that demand is steady and doesn't change over time. However, demand for a product does not change over time when it enters a growth phase.

The following presumptions form the foundation of the fundamental economic order quantity model:

- The desire for products is well established.
- The wait time required to receive an order is predictable and continuous.
- No multiple discounts are offered.
- The receipt of inventory is immediate and occurs in one batch.
- The only inconstant costs are ordering and carrying costs
- Stock outs or shortages can be prevented if orders are put on at the right time.

In using this method of stock control problems are encountered on:

- The process of determining the appropriate data inputs to accurately present inventories and operations.
- Using all storage and material handling costs to determine shipping costs, which frequently produces extremely inflated figures and inaccurate E.O.Q calculation results.
- Using all expenses related to purchasing and receiving deposits to determine the overall cost. Additionally, this raises figures.
- Companies determine the storage cost percentage for the E.O.Q calculation by dividing total warehouse expenditures by the average inventory. This frequently includes expenses that are not directly impacted by inventory levels and do not account for the characteristics of storage.

Though the economic order and reorder quantity formula is just the basic formula, there are several constraints and problems due to which this model has to be modified. The following are some inventory management techniques that are based upon the EOQ, but have some or the other modification as per necessity:

Fixed Order Quantity Model: The fixed order quantity model is used when the supplier of a raw material is done only in specified denominations such as 10 meters of cloth, 10 kg of stainless steel, etc. In such a situation, the carrying costs, cost per order or even carrying cost per unit are constant. The annual requirement is, however, uniform and has to be set according to the supply denominations.

Fixed Order Interval Model: The fixed order interval models are used when the supply has to be uniform at uniform intervals, such as 10 meters cloth per week. Here all the costs and annual requirements are uniform, with an occasional rise or fall in ordering costs.

Single Period Models: Single period models are used in cases where the inventory items are of perishable nature. Here all time elements of the EOQ are uniform and unchangeable.

2.8.4 The ABC system

A business that has a variety of items in its inventory with varying values may use a selective control system, such as the ABC system. According to the item's value, this system separates its inventory into three groups: A, B, and C. These things, which require the most dollar commitment, are part of the A group. The elements making up the following largest investment are included in the B group. A large number of things often make up the C group, which accounts for a relatively small dollar outlay. The company can determine the type and quantity of inventory control products it needs by segmenting its inventory into ABC items. High value goods may be under tight control, while low value items may experience relative loss of control.

2.8.5 The Just In Time System (JIT)

The JIT inventory system is dependent on suppliers to deliver products for just-in-time delivery of raw materials to the manufacturing floor. The JIT approach minimizes inventories and reduces the amount of storage space required. The notion is that inventions should occur exactly when they are required for production, as the name suggests. A JIT method also necessitates cooperation from all parties involved, including suppliers and staff members of the company. Employees must encourage competitive excellence, continual improvements and 100 percent quality items so as to enable the JIT system to be successful. The development of instant information through advanced computing networks is one factor that has made this possible. Supply chain management is the coordination of various suppliers in a productive manner. The following goals are pursued by JIT systems:

- Eliminating of non-value-adding operations
- single batch sizes

- zero faults and inventory
- zero failures, and on-time delivery services
- The buying of products that are delivered and put to use right away

2.9 Cash management

For the purpose of making cash work more quickly and keeping it in uses that generate income, cash management refers to the effective administration of cash in a firm. Lockboxes, sweep accounts, and other banking services enable quick processing of received funds as well as the generation of interest revenue from deposited funds. The lockbox service comprises processing and making the necessary bank deposits, as well as collecting, tallying, totalling, and accounting for customs payments. A sweep account is one in which money from your checking account is automatically transferred by the bank into another account with a high interest rate. The term cash with reference to cash management is used to cover cash and generally accepted equivalent of cash such as cheques, draft and demand deposits in banks. The broader view of cash also induce hear- cash assets, such as marketable sense as marketable securities and bank time deposist. The primary characteristics of these deposits are their ability to be quickly sold and convert into cash. They also provide short term investment outlet for excess and are also useful for meeting planned outflow of funds. We employ the term cash management in the broader sense. Irrespective of the form in which it is held, a distinguishing feature of cash as assets is that it was no earning power. Company have to always maintain the cash balance to fulfil the dally requirement of expenses. There are four primary motives for maintaining cash ie

- Transaction motive
- Speculative motive
- Precautionary motive
- Compensating motive

2.9.1 The importance of managing cash

A firm that holds cash has advantages in that the firm reduces transactions costs because it won't have to issue securities or borrow as frequently to raise cash; and it will have ready cash to take advantage of bargain purchases or growth opportunities. The primary disadvantage is that the after-tax return on cash and short-term securities is very low. Thus, firms face a trade-off between benefits and costs.

Cash does not enter into a company's profit and loss statement, thus it is neither a profit nor a loss. However, without cash, a company's profit remains meaningless.

- A substantial amount of cash can support a failing business despite losses.
- Effective cash management, through the use of a timely and relevant cash budget, may help a business achieve the best working capital and reduce cash shortages, as well as provide money with optimal growth.

Changes to the balance sheet and other cash flows, such as capital expenditures, that are not reflected in the profit and loss statement are part of cash management.

2.9.2 Methods of Easing Cash Shortages

The steps that usually taken by a company when a need for cash arises & when it cannot obtain resources from any other source such as a loan or an increased overdraft are as follows.

- Postponing capital expenditure.-It might be imprudent to postpone expenditure on fixed assets which are needed for the development growth of the business. On the other hand, some capital expenditures are routine & might be postponable without serious consequences. The routine replacement of motor vehicles is an example. If a company's policy is to replace company cars every two years, but the company is facing a cash shortage, it might decide to replace cares every three years.
- Accelerating cash inflows which would otherwise be expected in a later period.-The most obvious way of bringing forward cash inflows would be to press debtors for earlier payment. Often, this policy will result in a loss of goodwill & problems with customers. There will also be very little scope for speeding up payments when the credit period currently allowed to debtors is no more than the norm for the industry. It might be possible to encourage debtors to pay more quickly by offering discounts for earlier payment.
- reversing past investment decisions by selling assets previously acquired.-Some assets are less crucial to a business than others & so if cash flow problem are serve, the option of selling investments or property might have to be considered.
- Negotiating a reduction in cash outflows so as to postpone or even reduce payments. There are several ways in which this could be done, reducing costs- capital and people expenses are key expenses that can be controlled tightly by having a fully integrated system that make everyone productive allowing you to accomplish more with less time wasted on non-value added activities.

 Longer credit might be taken from suppliers. However, if the credit period allowed is as ready generous, creditors might be very reluctant to extend credit even further & any such extension of credit would have to be negotiated carefully. There would be a serious risk of having further supplies refused

2.9.3 Cash collections and acceleration of collections

The purpose of this is to shorten the time between when the customer submits the check and when it is acknowledged by the payee and becomes usable money. This period, known as float, can be broken down into three main parts:

Mail float- The time between when a check is posted and when the payee receives it, which is idle cash in, is called the post-cheque period.

Process float- This is the period of time between when a check is received until it is actually deposited into the business's bank account.

The clearing float- The length of time it takes for a check to clear the banking system is used to measure this.

Float is crucial because a business cannot withdraw funds from deposits until the checks associated with those deposits are collected. The company's finance manager seeks to minimize the float as much as possible as they are not useable funds.

Float can also be classified into negative and positive float based on whether it affects the marketability of the film in a positive or negative way. Positive float occurs when a company pays suppliers since it will take time for the supplier's bank account to be debited, whereas negative float occurs when a company receives a check and must wait for the float period for the check to be cleared and become usable funds. By implementing the following strategies, a company will need to work on reducing float in order to speed up the cash conversion cycle.

2.9.4 Concentration banking

Establishing strategic collection centers is one technique to speed up a company's flow of cash. Instead of having a single collection center at the company's headquarters, concentration banking entails the development of many collection centers, which are often dependent on the geographic areas served and the volumes of billings in those areas. This is intended to reduce the postal fee.

Customers in a specific geographic area are mandated to send their money to a collection agency there. The funds are deposited into the collecting agency's bank account as soon as they are received. To reduce the overall working balance requirements, the many local banks will transfer excess cash beyond a specified minimum to a central concentration account (the company's primary bank account, typically a disbursement).

This allows a business to manage its cash more effectively and invest any extra funds right away if it rises above a certain level. In other words, it creates a sizable pool of money that can be used to invest short-term capital. Investing a single pool of funds reduces the firm's transaction costs since there is a fixed cost component in the transaction costs associated with such investments. A wide variety of short-term investment vehicles are available to the company thanks to the large investment pool. Concentrating the company's funds in one account enhances their tracking and internal control. The ability to execute payment strategies that reduce idle cash amounts is another benefit of having one concentration bank. However, the profits from the investments of the released funds must be weighed against any additional expenses associated with a decentralized system as opposed to a centralized one, such as the increased number of local bank accounts that need to be kept open.

2.9.5 Establishing a lock-box system

By requiring customers in a specified region to mail their checks to a specific post box inside their area, the lock box system implements a regional cash collection and deposit system. The company's neighborhood bank is authorized to regularly collect mail directly from the box and deposit the checks into the company's account. The bank electronically transmits deposit slips and payment enclosures to the company so that the company can amend the customer's account. The bank will charge a fee, but the firm will profit from the reduction in mail and clearing float as well as the removal of processing. All three parts of the float are impacted by a lock-box system.

Cost is the primary drawback of a lockbox adjustment. In addition to clearing checks as usual and compensating customers for them by making escalating deposits, the bank offers a number of services. Lockbox changes are typically not feasible if the average remittance is low because costs are virtually directly proportional to the number of deposited checks.

2.9.6 Investing idle cash- Cash management models

In order to generate surpluses and make it possible for funds to be quickly converted back into cash when a need arises, cash that exceeds the amount needed for working expenses is typically invested in easily convertible assets. Systems for deciding when and how many marketable securities should be bought or sold are known as cash management models. The Baumol and Mille-O models are the two fundamental models that have been opposed.

2.9.6.1 The Baumol model

William J. Baumol created the baumol model in 1952, which is quite similar to the economic order quantity model used for inventory management. Marketable assets are kept in reserve for cash needs or investment opportunities. A high cash holding will result in a cost that is

equivalent to the opportunity cost of investing the money to produce a return that is equal to the cost of capital. The expense of keeping your cash balance too low will be equal to the chance lost to take discounts, borrow money, or convert assets into cash.

As cash is retained, the opportunity cost of doing so increases. The transaction cost of converting assets to cash will increase if insufficient cash is held. There is a level of holding cash that will produce the lowest cost of managing cash as opposed to converting assets to cash. This level ought to result in a maximizing of the interest received on marketable securities and a reduction of the costs associated with selling them. Instantaneous replenishment and simultaneous use of cash are the assumptions made in this approach. By determining the ideal cash conversion quantity, this method provides for cost-effective transaction cash balances. Cash is consumed as an inventory item that can be assuredly used in the future to settle transactions. The company controls its cash inventory based on the costs associated with converting marketable securities into cash (conversion costs) and the opportunity cost of forgoing interest while holding cash in excess of marketable securities.

The cost-minimizing quantity for economic convergence in which to convert marketable

2BT

security is given by:

When converting marketable securities into cash, Where B = Fixed transaction cost T is the period demand (annual cash demand).

Q is the ideal withdrawal size

. I stands for the opportunity cost of retaining cash (intent on marketable securities).

The model has been criticized for its assumptions' limitations, which include the following:

- The model implies that a firm will maintain a steady cash balance, which is not always the case in actual practice.
- The model does not account for uncertainty in cash flows, and cash inflows are not taken into consideration either.

2.9.6.2 The Miller-Orr model

As a stochastic model, this one is based on the real-world supposition that currency movement is random. It takes into account changing inflows and outflows of cash throughout time. It presumes that daily net cash flows are distributed uniformly. The model's primary goal is to determine how many marketable securities the company should sell and buy. When the company reaches the low limit of its cash balance and needs extra funds, it sells marketable securities. When it reaches its upper limit and must reduce the cash balance, marketable securities are purchased.

Fig 2.9.6.2 represents the Miller-Orr model and sets target cash level of Z, it allows for cash fluctuations between point A and B.

The company will invest a sum equal to AZ in marketable securities when the cash flows reach the upper limit line A in order to generate enough money to bring the cash holdings up to target level Z. The company's attitude toward risk determines the low limit of cash. The model presupposes that the transaction costs associated with purchasing and selling investments are stable and that the opportunity cost of keeping cash is equal to the nominal investment rate. $3b\Box_2$

$$\frac{B}{4i}$$

Mathematically:

Upper limit=3Z – 2B

 $4Z\Box B$

Average cash balance=
3
 Where:

Z = optimal return point

B = cost per order of converting marketable securities into cash or cash to marketable securities.

 \square^2 = The variance of daily cash balances

i

= the daily interest rate on short-term marketable securities

B = the lower cash limit

Figure 2.9.6.2


CashZ	V
В	

Time

2.10 Accounts Payable Management:

Paying the bills is only one aspect of accounts payable management (APM). An organization's financial spending is tracked, controlled, and optimized by the APM. The goal is to have a management system in place that not only saves you money but also controls costs, whether it be money spent on goods or services for direct input, such as raw materials used in the manufacture of products, or money spent on indirect materials, such as office supplies or other miscellaneous expenses that are not a direct cause of the finished product. Creditors are a crucial component of efficient cash management and should be carefully managed to improve the financial situation. In business, there is an old proverb that states that if you can buy well, you can sell well. It's just as important to manage your creditors and suppliers as it is to control your debts. It is crucial to follow up on your invoices because late payments from you could lead to resentment and indicate that your business is inefficient (or in trouble!).

Building a strong and trusting relationship with customers depends on your payment policies. For each supplier, reliability, price, and quality should be the primary purchasing goals. Make sure the buyer understands the terms and conditions of the payment by writing them down and agreeing to them by signing. Utilize discounts by paying promptly, and note the creditors who are likely to be rigid and who might seriously harm the business if you don't exercise your right to change interest rates on late payments. Keep them informed, particularly when you refuse to pay for damaged goods. Create a solid reputation so that companies can trust you and the information you provide.

2.11 Working capital management in hyper inflation

In a time of high inflation both trading and manufacturing companies will need more working capital to maintain their existing level of activity. But it is desirable to check the increasing demand for more working capital as the government opts for a tight fiscal policy to cut down inflation (Baveld, 2012).

To keep the working capital requirement unchanged a company has to take some measures on all segments of its operating cycle. An over-trading situation will be created if a firm tries to invest, beyond its capacity, in stocks and on debts. Overtrading causes acute shortage of cash, as under it the day-to-day outflows exceed collections. To check overtrading, disposal of slow moving and obsolete stocks is a must (Le, 2019). Increasing requirement of working capital will be reduced, at least to some extent, if the span of operating cycle can be reduced. Cutting down the time span of operating cycle would make greater turnover at shorter intervals possible. This will help quicker debt settlements.

Getting adequate credit facility from suppliers depends on a firm's credibility with its suppliers. Timely payments to creditors help a firm build good relationship and increase its bargaining power. Cash inflows and outflows have to match to avoid liquidity crisis.

To achieve these targets following areas will have to be given priority: reducing set-up times, purchasing or manufacturing only what is needed now for timely delivery to the customers and ensuring a synchronized and balanced distribution of uneven workloads among workers and machinery.

In mixed-model manufacturing lines, where more than one gas types is produced, synchronization of workloads has to match the set-up times. The Gasmaking system would need a flexible capacity to respond quickly to increases in demand. Making the production process flexible, without automation, can be possible by removing unnecessary equipment and activities. It would make production more flexible without investment of additional fund for automation. Timely transportation and material handling would provide lead time. Proper monitoring of these areas by entrepreneurs would ensure stocks maintenance and timely shipment.

Economies of scale enable a producer to offer his product at competitive prices, needed to capture a larger market share. In time of high inflation, economies of scale in the production process would be more helpful for the domestic economy.

All these measures can help maintain working capital at the desired level during high inflation given increased productivity of workforce using the existing equipment. Before going into any incentive scheme, the cost involved must be calculated weighing the benefit to be derived. Increased productivity adds value and reduces labor cost per unit. This would act as a cost cutting measure to offset higher prices of other inputs in a period of high inflation.

It would help maintain working capital at the desired level without injecting additional funds.

2.12 Poor management of working capital.

2.12.1 Symptoms

In general the following causes are seen in inefficient management of working capital. 28

- Excessive carriage of Inventory over the normal levels required for the business will result in more balance in trade creditors accounts. More creditors balances will causes strain on the management in management to cash.
- Working capital problems will arise when there is a slowdown in the collection of debtors.
- Sometimes capital goods will be purchased from the funds available for working capital. This will result in shortage of working capital and its impact is on operations of the company.
- Unplanned production schedules will cause excessive stocks of finished goods or failures in meeting dispatch schedules. More funds kept in the foam of cash will not generate any profit for the business.
- Overtrading will cause shortage of working capital and its ultimate effects are on the operation of the company.

2.13 Impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on Working Capital Management.

The crucial issue is that all businesses will experience changes in their liquidity management strategies during a crisis (Campello et al. 2010), but businesses with worse financial standing are more likely to suffer (Ivashina and Schafstein, 2010). During the Covid-19 epidemic, BOC Gases in particular saw large income inflows from sales of medical oxygen and covid19 treatment accessories like egulatos from both individuals and businesses. Due to the strong demand for medical oxygen and the fact that BOC Gases was the only supplier of the product, this improved BOC Gases' cash situation; nonetheless, it was unable to keep up with stock requests. Debts like those of public organizations and private hospitals are frequently purchased on credit and accounts receivables rose in amount.

2.14 Review of the empirical evidence.

On top of the theoretical framework, it is also of great importance to consider and review what other authors have obtained during their related researches. The study by Gadelius and Lasson (2019) focuses on some civic issues such as cost containment, reducing investment in working capital, and improving working capital efficiency. It highlights the need for several industries to improve their overall return on capital employed (OCE).

Both the earlier study by Deloof (2007) and the more recent study by Shin and Soenen (1998) demonstrated a very significant relationship between working capital management metrics and corporate profitability. According to their findings, managers can decrease profitability by reducing the number of days' worth of receivables and inventories. This is particularly important for small businesses that must finance increasing debt loads. Agha (2014a) agrees with others that working capital management has a substantial impact on profitability and claims that managers may increase profitability by reducing inventory turnover, accounts receivable turnover, and credit turnover.

However findings by Akgun and Karatas (2020) reveal that there is a negative relationship between cash conversion cycle and profitability. This complies with the findings of Handley and Limao(2015) who recommend that firms should forecast their sales and hold cash enough as according to their projected sales level and take advantage of bargains.

2.15 Conclusion

Theanalysis in this chapter has laid an understanding on what working capital management is the importance of managing it and the consequences of its ineffective management. The above example, provided by experts, highlights a typical phenomenon: managing working capital necessitates weighing the costs and advantages associated with each component of working capital in order to make the best possible use of it.

Chapter 3 Research Methodologies

3.1 Introduction

Research methodology refers to the systematic, focused and collection of data for the purposes of obtaining information in order to solve problems. It is the evaluation and justification for employing a specific methodology in a particular investigation. This chapter aims to provide a description of how each study will be carried out, including all of the actions and procedures that will be taken throughout the study. The chapter describes how different people were chosen for the study and how different data collection techniques were employed. The primary goal of the study is to examine and assess how well-working capital measures affect the value of the company. This will be done by creating an empirical framework based on the study's subjects and data collection techniques (Enqvist et al, 2014).

3.2 Research design

A research design, according to Coope and Schindle (2003:146), is a strategy for conducting research that is intended to produce answers to specific questions. The study design theory is a strategy for the entire study that outlines the course of the research's course of action. Thus, a research design provides answers to queries like: How will the data be collected? Which type of sampling will be carried out? How will disagreements be resolved? The descriptive approach was essentially adopted as the research design in this study (Salehi et al, 2020).

The research is both quantitative and qualitative in nature; it involves the use of literature reviewed in chapter two on what liquidity is and working capital elements and the importance of managing working capital to set out the research background. It is descriptive in nature since the study aims to gather information that enables us to describe the characteristics of successfully operating capital management. This method was determined to be more appropriate for this study since it provides great assistance in determining the relationships between various variables and is simple to use (Salehi et al, 2018). This design is affordable and effectively reduces financial costs without compromising the effectiveness of the approach. However, its design heavily relies on factors that guarantee high degrees of accuracy. As part of the qualitative data, a questionnaire was released and interviews were conducted. The second round of data collection is described in chapters 1 and 2.

3.3 Methods of collecting data

Questionnaires were the primary method of gathering information for survey data. Aside from gathering clarifications on issues that need clarification, interviews were also held so that certain concerns that could not be adequately addressed in the questions could be clarified.

3.3.1Questionnaires

A questionnaire is an instrument for gathering data through carefully crafted questions, according to Zikmund (2000: 366). To gather data, mostly qualitative data, sets of questions were emailed to the desired respondents. We utilized open-ended questions to allow respondents to appropriately express their opinions and viewpoints.

3.3.1.1Advantages

- > They give the respondent ample time to research and think of an appropriate answer.
- Questionnaires have a potential to cover wide geographical coverage as they can be sent to any location or site of research interest.
- Questions are typically inexpensive to administer because the only costs involved are printing and shipping.
- Self-admitted questionnaires give respondents the freedom to complete the questions at their own convenient times and give them the time to consider their answers.

3.3.1.2Disadvantages

- > respondents may fail to interpret questions and may thus give inaccurate answers.
- ➢ None or late response.
- > respondents may fail to express their views adequately.

3.3.2 Interviews

Insider perspectives were held through interviews to inform professionals' opinions. In-depth discussions were done to provide justification for comments made on the topic and any extra information on problems that the questionnaire couldn't have adequately addressed.

3.3.2.1 Advantages

Provides detailed explanations, which could not have been incorporated in the questionnaire.

- Places the respondent at ease such that opinions are effortlessly expressed. Interviews provide assurance that opinions may not be traced back to respondents hence they provide a flexible and friendly background to discussion.
- > It is easy to detect the emotions and feelings of the interviewee.
- > The response is obtained immediately.

3.3.2.2 Disadvantages

- > The researcher may influence the respondents' answers.
- Interviews are time consuming; the respondent may be wary of long interview sessions and hence may limit answers to brief assertions.
- Costs involved in travelling to different geographical locations to hold interviews make interviews expensive to hold.

3.4 Secondary sources

The researcher extensively used publications done by accountants and investors world over.

3.4.1 Advantages of secondary sources

- Using secondary sources was less expensive than setting up investigations, although care was taken to ensure that the data:
- Is relevant,
- Altered to fit the issue and is dependable.

3.5 Population

Population refers to all candidates who are relevant to the election in each survey. Ding et al. (2020) noted that judgmental sampling is applicable when the examiner wants a sample of examinees, which was the case in this study. The sample was chosen based on the size of the company as well as whether it would be feasible for the examiner to obtain information from that specific company. The population in the research consists of 2 people per branch making them 10 from all the 5 branches. BOC gases due the nature of its operation and being the sole manufacturer and supplier of Industrial Oxygen tends to experience working capital problems.

3.6 Case Study Sample

A sample is a representative portion of a target group that is taken in order to depict how the majority of the population behaves. It is ideally equivalent to studying the entire population while conveniently reducing the study components in cases where this is not practicable. A

sample is a grouping of some, but not all, of the components of the population under study that is used to describe the population, according to Levin (1994:52). The sample for this study was collected from 10 employees across all branches, including BOC Mutare, BOC Kwekwe, BOC Harare, and BOC Gweru.

Industry	Department	Number of employees
BOC HARARE	Stores	1
	Credit control	1
BOC GWERU	Sales	1
	Cylinder Control	1
BOC MUTARE	Procurement	1
	Sales	1
BOC BULAWAYO	Credit Control	1
	Stores	1
BOC KWEKWE	Finance	1
	Sales	1
Source Paw data		

Source: Raw data

Figure 3. 1 showing the sample of the population in the research.

3.7 Pilot Testing

The research distributed four questionnaires to fellow students, two management questionnaires in order to establish clarity, validity, and reliability of the instrument employed. . The pilot test also served to analyze the inteview guidelines, and changes were implemented immediately. Prior to actually sending out the questions, a preliminary analysis was conducted. The pilot study revealed the respondents' misconceptions and the necessity of elaborating on some of the questions for greater clarity and relevance.

3.8 Data Validation

Before drawing conclusions from the responses, the researcher verified if they were reasonable. The reasonableness check was conducted based on the remarks made by a respondent after providing an answer to a question. This was done in an effort to reduce sampling risk, which is the risk of drawing conclusions from a sample that are different from those that would have been drawn from a 100% survey.

The researcher made the assumption that the data gathered from the companies would be accurate because the management participants were thought of as experts because they were the ones who had the closest contact with the business and were therefore the most knowledgeable about the potential uses of working capital.

3.9 Data Analysis and Presentation

Data analysis is the process of consistently using logical and/or statistical techniques to describe, illustrate, summarize, and assess data. The questions were initially examined for physical completeness. By counting the consequences of specific facts to make drawing conclusions easier, qualitative data from the open-ended questions was analyzed through content analysis. In the following chapter, pie charts, tables, graphs, and tables will be utilized to present and analyze the primary and secondary data that the researcher will gather. In the interpretation of data, statistical methods were applied. The usage of atios and considered-necessary Indices was another key component of the erosion.

3.10 Conclusion

The thesis employed the descriptive research method. The chapter discussed sampling concerns, different types of data acquired, and procedures for data collecting and processing.

The study is now moving on to the next chapter, which will present the data and analyze and discuss the study's conclusions

Chapter 4

Data Presentation, Analysis and Discussion

4.1 Introduction

This chapter focuses mainly on data presentation and its analysis based on the findings obtained from sent out questionnaires and interviews undertaken. reference will be made to the previous related findings and literature in the literature review chapter.

4.2 Response rate

Table 4.	1	Response rate
----------	---	---------------

STATUS	Number of Questionnaires	Percentage %
Total Sent	10	100%
Total Returned	10	100%
Fully Completed	8	80%
Spoiled	1	10%

Source: Raw Data

4.2.1 Data interpretation.

A sample frame of 10 employees' from all 5 branches was used and 80% of the questionnaires issued came fully completed. One was returned half complete and one was spoiled. The table shows that there was 100% response rate and 20% were spoiled resulting in a net response rate of 80% which is still distinct to guarantee validity and reliability. According Salehi (2018) a high response rate signifies a good relationship between the researcher and the sample respondents.

4.3 Cash flow forecast results.

Table 4. 2 Cash Flow

DEPAR	FMENT
DLI AN	

Time intervals	Accounts	Sales	Stores	Procurement
Weekly		\checkmark		
Monthly			\checkmark	\checkmark
Quarterly	\checkmark			
Semi-annually				
Annually	\checkmark			

Source: Primary data

4.3.1 Data interpretation

The accounts department at BOC Gases is forecasting cash flows on a quarterly and annual basis. The sales department is forecasting cash needs on a monthly basis whilst the procurement and purchasing does monthly forecasts of cash needs as well.

4.3.2 Data Analysis

The data shows that the accounts department does cash flow forecasts on a monthly basis which is a long period if it wants to be able to obtain accurate forecasts. Previous literature and research studies argue that cash flow forecasts should be done on a weekly basis irrespective of size, nature and sector. Mooney's (2020) research as detailed in Chapter 2 clearly explains that weekly cash flow forecasts are used to project a company's liquidity over the medium term, breaking down weekly captures of granular movements that can be overlooked if using monthly or longer periods.

4.4 Cash management

Cash is the lifeblood of the business that enables the business to survive and is the primary indicator of business health. The goal of cash management is to ensure that the company has liquid cash on hand sufficient to satisfy its obligations while also ensuring that any extra cash is invested to prevent it from sitting about, which is not in the best interest of the business. When it comes to investing idle funds, the business must be able to predict its demands for a certain period of time in order to convert invested funds to cash at the precise moment needed to pay suppliers and determine how long excess funds should be held in reserve. The researcher tried to find out whether the companies under study are able to forecast their needs for a given period (Lind et al, 2012). The results obtained are indicated below.



Figure 4. 1Chart showing how BOC Gases can accurately forecast cash needs.

Primary data: BOC Gases.

The analysis shows that BOC Gases cannotaccurately forecast cash needs as the figures obtained shows a lower rate of 23% this is due to the time factor of cash flow intervals. BOC Gases duration of cash flow forecasts is longer than the desired one week interval. This is what adversely affects working capital management as the management of BOC Gases cannot accurately forecast cash needs.

In view of cash management, liquidity can be improved by making sure that the cash collection period is kept as short as possible thus companies should be able to control their cash collections.

4.5 Cash management strategies

As well explained in the literature review chapter 2, theorist put forward the below two cash management models that are assumed to aid companies in their cash management.

Response	Baumol	Miller-Orr
Yes (%)	_	_
No (%)	100%	100%

Table 4. 3showing percentage of use of Baumol and Miller-Orr model.

4.5.1 Data Interpretation and analysis.

BOC Gases claimed it does not use any of the above models and some of the employees are not even familiar with the models. 85% of the employees are not familiar and claimed they have never heard of such models and the remainder of 15% have problems in forecasting their future cash needs thus the avoidance of the model. The Baumol model works best in circumstances when the amounts required in the future may be accurately determined. The models are too complex and specialized for personnel in the finance area to use them, which is another reason why these strategies weren't used.

4.5.2 Problems encountered at BOC Gases in cash management.

• • The accountant at BOC Gases complained that the company's inability to forecast future cash demands was due to poor production planning, which resulted in the unexpected procurement of raw materials.

- At BOC Gases another major drawback was insufficient manpower in the credit control department. The credit control department has very little skilled manpower in the department leading to a longer collection period in the department and proper debt chasing.
- The COVID-19 pandemic came with induced lockdown periods which made it difficult to properly do cash flow forecasts as economic situations kept fluctuating.
- The high inflation rate is the most negative factor impacting cash flow forecast and realisation of cash. When debtors are paying up the cash would have lost its purchasing power as compared to when the debt was granted.



Figure 4. 2The chart below shows the rate of cash inflows in relation to covid-19 pandemic.

Source: BOC Gases, Primary data.

4.6 Debtors

One of the most crucial elements to running a prosperous corporation is efficient editorial control. Without timely payments, a company's cash flow can be severely impacted, and the problems that follow can easily spiral out of control. Debt collection and control are made perfect by BOC Gases' fully furnished credit control department, which is centrally located at the company's head office in Harare.

FREQUENCY	RTGS CUSTOMERS	USD CUSTOMERS	PUBLIC
			HOSPITALS
Daily	\checkmark		
Weekly		\checkmark	

Fortnight	\checkmark	
Monthly		✓

Source: Raw data

Figure 4. 3 showing the frequency at which BOC Gases chases for payment

The results show that the company chases for payment using the debt following procedures explained in the literature review stage and customers that buy using local currency are constantly reminded on a daily basis due to the high inflation rates. Customers that buy using foreign currency are reminded and due after one week or in a fortnight depending on the amount involved. Public hospitals are due after a month since the Government treasury pays for them after a month.

4.7 How often BOC Gases receives payment from its accounts receivables.

The chart below shows how often debtors pay their debts owing and their responsiveness to the accounts receivables department.



Figure 4. 4 chart showing how often BOC Gases receives payments from debtors.

Source: Raw data, BOC Gases Zimbabwe.

4.7.1 Data interpretation

The data shows that only 10% of accounts receivables are paying within 7 days, whilst 23% is paying within 14 days and 42% is being paid in 30 days. 22% are paying in more than 30 days and 3% are bad debts. This is quite positive in the sense that 42% of debtors are paying within 30 days. Strict credit control procedures should be implemented to counter the 22% paying in more than 30 days and the 3% bad debts should be reduced to zero.

4.7.2 Data analysis

Agha (2018) advocates that an average collection period should be between 40-45 days, whereas, Zimon (2020) advocates for a longer period to strengthen trade relationship. Due to the availability of the credit control department at BOC Gases, this led to a lower rate of bad debts and most debts are being paid within 30 days, this is due to the credit limit of 30 days given to customers.. Most organization without a credit control department receives payments in more than 30 days plus period.

4.8 Creditors

Companies rely on creditors for the smooth operation of the business. The payment policy is a vital part of building a strong and trusting relationship with suppliers. Payment terms offered by the business would help so as to see whether they enable firms to make use of cheaper credit terms.

Credit period	No. of companies (%)
C.O.D	35%
15 days	25%
30 days	45%
60+	0%

Table 4. 4showing the trade terms offered by creditors

Source: Raw data

The results show that most companies are relaxing their credit terms to their customers although some still prefer cash on delivery as a dollar received today is worth much more than a dollar receive in n days. Despite the credit terms being given by suppliers all the companies claimed that the always delay payments as an outstanding payment may fall due when the company has insufficient funds in the bank account although they all claimed that they would never miss a payment intentionally and for not more than 30days.

4.9 Inventory

Company inventory should be kept at an ideal level at any given time, by optimizing inventory levels, you reduce the risk of common inventory issues, from high storage costs to out-of-stock items.

Figure 4. 5showing the inventory techniques employed by various departments.

Models	Number of departments	<u>rate</u>
MINI-MAX	5	50%
J.I.T	3	30%
ABC	-	-
CONSIGNME	NT 4	40%
OTHER	-	
Source: Author		

4.9.1 Data interpretation

The information denoted above shows that 50% of the departments use mini-max inventory management technique in which inventory is kept at a specific range, a minimum and a maximum stock level is set. 30% use the J.I.T method which is applied to special gases that are very expensive to manufacture and stock. These gases will be manufactured when they are needed. 40% use the consignment method; this is when BOC Gases gives distributors to sell on its behalf for a commission.

4.9.2 Data analysis

The data shows BOC Gases to be making use of the Mini-max techniques which can be called the Economic order quantity in some instances The just in time is following third on the data, this means that traditional methods are being used to manage inventory. The consignment method aids in reaching all market segments by giving distributors all over the world to sell for BOC Gases. Ali (2020) suggests that ABC since it is based on maintaining dollar value is valuable and the mini max method that states that items of low demand need lower cost servicing and therefore maintains optimum level of inventory.

4.10 Problems encountered in managing inventory

- Unqualified employees in charge of inventory. People that lack sufficient experience, are careless in their work, or lack suitable training have been given the reins of their invention distribution by BOC Gases. No matter the system employed, businesses must pay strict attention to inventory management and ensure that staff receive positive reinforcement.
- Failure to identifying shortages ahead of time. BOC Gases frequently fails to spot problems in a timely manner; a company discovers that it needs a certain number of

products or materials but does not have any on hand and must make an order. The supply chain process can be slowed down by waiting for the shipment to arrive. Poor customer relations might result from not having enough products in stock to meet demand. A supervisor in charge of inventory management should regularly review their inventory to ensure that there is enough product on hand.

- Excessive inventory in stock and unable to move it quickly enough. This is perhaps the most typical issue for the majority of firms. Moving inventory generates cash flow. A business loses money if it purchases a certain quantity of a product for its inventory but does not sell it.
- Computer inventory systems are too complicated. There are many inventory software programs available for business use. The problem is that many of these programs are not user-friendly. The majority of the users of these systems are not tech-savvy, which is something that computer software developers fail to consider. A business may not always have the resources to train staff members to use software efficiently.
- Items in-stock get misplaced. Even if the computer correctly indicates that the item is in stock, it could still be somewhere in the warehouse or in the wrong area of a store. Due to lost sales and increased inventory expenses since the item must be "eoded," this can result in a decline in profits. Additionally, the business must allot staff time to track down the lost item.

4.11 Conclusion

The information gathered is adequate to achieve the study's goals and will allow for the drawing of insightful findings. The respondents provided insightful information on how they manage working capital as well as the challenges they face when trying to put in place an effective working capital management system. The data analysis in this chapter helps highlight the key working capital components and the challenges BOC Gases and other gas companies are currently facing. Zimbabwean businesses are working to ensure that they can fulfill their contractual responsibilities without suffering business interruptions. Using the information gathered, it is thus possible for the examiner to draw significant conclusions and offer necessary recommendations (This will be covered in the next chapter).

Chapter 5

Summary, Conclusions and Recommendations

5.1 Introduction

The study was able to draw conclusions about these findings and make recommendations on the subject after carefully examining the findings of the primary study and the literature on working capital management. The liquidity evaluation part covered the major goal of how businesses might use working capital to improve and strengthen liquidity. A study was conducted to see whether the established principles are applicable to Zimbabwean industries and to learn about the challenges facing the gas industries as they attempt to achieve the goal of minimizing cash flow issues (the results of which were discussed in the previous chapter).

5.2 Summary of the Findings

The research study focused on showing an analysis of the effectiveness of working capital management in gas industries, a case of BOC GASES. It was on the bases of various objectives which includesexplaining the objectives of managing working capital and to what extent these objectives are being achieved at BOC GASES, explaining the concept of liquidity and insolvency, explaining problems being faced by gas companies in trying to manage their working capital and possible solutions to the problems being encountered, to determine the applicability of various model techniques in working capital management and their impact on the overall performance of gas manufacturing and retail companies, to investigate the impact of hyperinflation on the management of working capital policies and to determine the effects of the Covid-19 pandemic on working capital of Gas Companies. The researcher went on present on the background of the study in chapter 1 and its significance to the researcher, university and organisations.

The researcher reviewed literature on the effectiveness of working capital management in gas industries globally, regionally and nationally being guided by the objectives of the study and acknowledging other researchers, writers, journals, books and articles. The researcher made use of qualitative and quantitative methods of collecting data through the use of questionnaires, interviews and secondary sources. Chapter four the researcher analysed and presented data where he made use of graphs, charts and tables.

5.3 Recommendations

5.3.1 How companies in the gas industry can effectively manage their working capital to reduce insolvency and increase shareholder value.

- incentivizing cash performance;
- tightening management of payment terms for customers and suppliers;
- improving credit, billing, and collection processes;
- establishing leading demand forecasting processes;
- Building greater linkage and closer coordination across the entire supply chain.
- Aligning inventories with the market and customer demand;
- Using as the chief metrics cost structure and the return on sales;
- Implementing processes closely allied with manufacturing for production planning and distribution to balance supply and demand;
- reducing inventories of WIP and finished goods; and

5.3.2 Measures to Improve Working Capital Management

- Proper cash flow forecasting is the cornerstone of efficient working capital management. This should consider the effects of unforeseen circumstances, market cycles, the loss of a prime customer, and competitive actions. It is important to factor in how unexpected needs will affect working capital.
- Having backup plans for unforeseen circumstances is beneficial. Other businesses need to have risk management processes even though market leaders can manage uncertainty better. These must be founded on an impartial and realistic assessment of the cost of capital.
- Addressing the problem of working capital at the corporate level provides some benefits. It is possible to use the money generated at one site another. Information access, effective banking channels, strong connections between production and billing, internal cash-moving systems, and solid safety procedures need all be in place for this to happen.
- Identifying and putting into practice strategies that generate quick money will require an inventive approach that combines operational and financial expertise with a comprehensive understanding of the company's operations. This can be accomplished by selecting the proper group of executives to be in charge of setting goals and performance standards. Then they are made to answer for what they delivered. Additionally, they are encouraged to take initiative and act as change agents.

- Effective dispute resolution procedures in customer relationships will go a long way toward freeing up money that would otherwise be locked in because of conflicts. Additionally, it will enhance customer service and free up time for legal tasks including sales, ownership of property, and money collection. Overall, efficiency will decline when operating costs are reduced.
- Cooperating with your customs rather than concentrating solely on your own operations will also produce positive outcomes. If possible, assisting them in effectively planning their inventory equipment to match your production with their consumption will aid in decreasing inventory levels. This is also possible with supplies.
- Firms can reduce their cash balances by holding marketable securities, which can be sold on short notice at close to their quoted prices. Marketable securities serve both as a substitute for cash and as a temporary investment for funds that will be needed in the near future. Safety is the primary consideration when selecting marketable securities.

5.3.3 Solutions to the problems hindering Gas manufacturers and retailersto achieve efficient working capital management.

Using debt factoring. The cost of the service should be weighed with the cost of in-house debt collected for example having sufficient cash to benefit from early payment discounts from suppliers.

Companies should know their customers and ensure they are able to pay their accounts before you offer them any credit facilities. This might seem like looking a gift horse in the mouth but a debtor becoming insolvent owing you two to three months' work will create a big hole in your finances for something.

Agree payment terms before you supply. If they intend taking 60 or 90 days to pay you should find out before starting the contract and make a positive decision to take the work or not and figure out how you will manage until the debt is paid.

Create an invoice quickly and accurately. Make sure you are aware of who and where to send bills, as well as what information they must include. Don't wait until the end of the month to issue invoices; do so right away. This may cause the customer to process another person's invoices in front of yours.

5.4 In light of cash management, how appropriate are theoretical methods of managing working capital to the gas businesses in Zimbabwe?:

The adoption of numerous ideas from theoetical methods demonstrates the obsession that most of the ways were suitable to manufacturing industries. Although their applicability was constrained by the economic environment in which these enterprises operate, these theoretical methods are only relevant in stable environments, hence they were inapplicable during the hype-inflation period (Nollet et al, 2017).

5.5 Working capital management in hyperinflation environments.

During hyperinflation, most gas companies are preferring to hold more non- monetary assets than monetary assets. This is so because the value of non-monetary assets appreciates with rising inflation (Chang et al,2019). It must be realized however that though it might seem noble and prudent, this results in cash being tied in long-term assets, which may not be easily convertible into cash when required. My recommendation to this is that such activities must be constantly supervised by the central government so as to avoid liquidity problems.

In addition to this companies must consider making use of strategies that help determine how much of non-monetary and monetary assets should be used to finance a give level of activities. This is so because as has been discussed in the literature review section, the cheapest form of capital considering the economy that the Zimbabwean gas companies are operating in is making use of working capital management so as to strengthen liquidity. This would mean that holding too much of fixed assets which cannot be easily converted into cash will intensify the cash flow problems that the companies are going through (Sandberg and Mena, 2015). On the other hand companies need a certain level of fixed assets to ensure their continued survival, thus the need for measures to determine how much of which kind of assets to hold at a given point in time.

5.6 Causes of poor performance with regard to working capital management.

1. Poor inventory turns. This is caused by too much emphasis on reducing stock outs (which increases investments in inventory) and delays resulting from regulatory burdens and lessthan-optimal quality policies and procedures (Popescu and Popescu, 2019)

2. Poor accounts-receivable turns which are mainly due to the recent direct-to-pharmacy trend in some countries (pharmaceutical companies) and longer payment cycles peculiar to some geographic areas.

3. Unaddressed accounts-payable issues caused by frequent lack of contract structure for the purchase of indirect materials, lack of consistent "Terms and Conditions across different countries or Business Units" and little purchasing-department engagement "early on in the r&D phase"

5.7 Policy implication

Working capital management should be of concern of all manufacturing sectors and need to be given due importance.

The collection and payment policies of the firms in manufacturing sectors need to be thoroughly reviewed.

Accelerate cash collections and slow down payments which can be achieved with the assistance of professional advice and supervision.

Firm managers can enhance the performance of the firms by reducing the number of days of inventory and cash conversion cycle to a reasonable level. This can only be possible if the components of the net trade cycle may be dealt with individually and an optimal effective policy is formulated for these components.

5.8 Conclusion

An important yardstick to measure a company's operational and financial effectiveness is working capital management. This factor needs to be considered in the strategic and operational thinking of the business. Continuous efforts should be made to strengthen the working capital situation. This will increase customer happiness and produce greater efficiency. An organization's working capital requirements and internal cash generation rate alter over time. As a result, the small businesses should ensure that their assets and liabilities are well synchronized.

The results of the study show that there is a statistically significant relationship between profitability measured by gross operating profit and the working capital cycle. According to the study of the firms listed in the previous chapter a well designed and implemented working capital management is expected to contribute significantly to the creation of the firm's value while non-attention to working capital management can lead to insolvency. The results also show that a high investment in inventories and receivables is associated with low profitability and showed an increasing trend in the short term component of working capital financing.

The results also show that for overall gas sectorcompanies' working capital management has a significant impact on profitability and insolvency and plays a key role in value creation and shareholder as longer cash conversion cycle and net trade cycle have negative impact on the net operating profitability of the firm. There exists negative association between inventory turnover days and net operating profitability for the gas manufacturing sector as a whole which implies that keeping lower inventories as a whole will increase profitability.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Books; journals and other publications.

Zimon, Grzegorz; Tarig, Hossein (2021) : Effects of the covid-19 global crisis on the working management policy: Evidence from Poland, Journal of risk and Financial Management, ISSN 1911-8074, MDPI, Basel, Vol.14

Agostino, Mariarosaria, and Francesco Trivieri. (2019). Does trade credit affect technical efficiency? Empirical evidence from Italian manufacturing SMEs. Journal of Small Business Management 57: 576–92.

Akgün, AliIhsan, and Ayyüce Memi,s Karata,s. 2020. Investigating the relationship between working capital management and business performance: Evidence from the 2008 financial crisis of EU-28. International Journal of Managerial Finance.

Baker, Scott r., Nicholas Bloom, and Steven J. Davis. 2016. Measuring economic policy uncertainty. The Quarterly Journal of Economics 131: 1593–636.

Baveld, Mathias Bernard. 2012. Impact of Working Capital Management on the Profitability of Public Listed Firms in The Netherlands during the Financial Crisis. Master's dissertation, University of Twente, Drienerlolaan, The Netherlands.

Bei, Zhao, and W. P. Wijewardana. 2012. Working capital policy practice: Evidence from srilankan companies. Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences 40: 695–700.

Blair, roger D., and Christine Piette Durrance. 2014. Group purchasing organizations, monopsony, and antitrust policy. Managerial and Decision Economics 35: 433–43.

Campello, Murillo, John г. Graham, and Campbell г. Harvey. 2010. The real effects of financial constraints: Evidence from a financial crisis. Journal of financial Economics 97: 470– 87.

Chang, Chong-Chuo, Tai-Yung Kam, Yu-Cheng Chang, and Chen-Chen Liu. (2019). Effects of the 2008 Financial Crisis on the Working Capital Management Policy of US Enterprises. International Journal of Business & Economics 18: 121–39.

Chauhan, Gaurav Singh. 2019. Are working capital decisions truly short-term in nature? Journal of Business research 99: 238–53.

Cicea, Claudiu, Ion Popa, Corina Marinescu, and Simona Cătălina S, tefan. 2019. Determinants of SME's performance: Evidence from European countries. Economic research-Ekonomska Istraživanja 32: 1602–20.

Cowan, Anne E., Sarah J. Clark, Jennifer L. Gordon, Karin Bok, and Angela K. Shen. 2016. Vaccine purchasing groups in the United States: An overview of their policies and practices. Vaccine 34: 5060–65.

Dalci, Ilhan, and Hasan Ozyapici. 2018. Working capital management policy in health care: The effect of leverage. Health Policy 122:1266–72.

Dana, James D., Jr. 2012. Buyer groups as strategic commitments. Games and Economic Behavior 74: 470–85.

Deloof, Marc. 2003. Does working capital management affect profitability of Belgian firms? Journal of Business Finance & Accounting 30:573–88.

Ding, Wenzhi, ross Levine, Chen Lin, and Wensi Xie. (2020). Corporate Immunity to the COVID-19 Pandemic. Cambridge: National Bureau of Economic research.

Ebben, Jay J., and Alec C. Johnson. 2011. Cash conversion cycle management in small firms: relationships with liquidity, invested capital, and firm performance. Journal of Small Business & Entrepreneurship 24: 381–96.

Enqvist, Julius, Michael Graham, and Jussi Nikkinen. 2014. The impact of working capital management on firm profitability in different business cycles: Evidence from Finland. research in International Business and Finance 32: 36–49.

Erdin, Ceren, and Gokhan Ozkaya. 2020. Contribution of small and medium enterprises to economic development and quality of life in Turkey. Heliyon 6: e03215. [PubMed]

Gadelius, Arvid, and Erik Larsson. 2019. The impact of the global financial crisis on working capital management in Swedish listed firms.

García-Teruel, Pedro Juan, and Pedro Martínez-Solano. 2007. Effects of working capital management on SME profitability. International Journal of Managerial Finance 3: 164–77.

Gherghina, S, tefan Cristian, Mihai Alexandru Botezatu, Alexandra Hosszu, and Liliana Nicoleta Simionescu. 2020. Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises (SMEs): The Engine of Economic Growth through Investments and Innovation. Sustainability 12: 347.

Handley, Kyle, and Nuno Limao. 2015. Trade and investment under policy uncertainty: Theory and firm evidence. American Economic Journal: Economic Policy 7: 189–222.

Hu, Qiaohai, and Leroy B. Schwarz. 2011. Controversial role of GPOs in healthcareproduct supply chains. Production and Operations Management Society 20: 1–15.

Ivashina, Victoria, and David Scharfstein. 2010. Bank lending during the financial crisis of 2008. Journal of Financial Economics 97:319–38.

Karaba `g, Oktay, and Barı,s Tan. 2018. Analysis of a group purchasing organization under demand and price uncertainty. Flexible Services Manufacturing Journal 30: 844–83.

Kieschnick, robert, Mark Laplante, and rabih Moussawi. 2013. Working capital management and shareholders' wealth. review of Finance 17: 1827–52.

Kim, Jong Hae. 2019. Multicollinearity and misleading statistical results. Korean Journal of Anesthesiology 72: 558.

Lambe, C. Jay, robert E. Spekman, and Shelby D. Hunt. 2002. Alliance competence, resources, and alliance success: Conceptualization, measurement, and initial test. Journal of the academy of Marketing Science 30: 141–58.

Le, Ben. 2019. Working capital management and firm's valuation, profitability and risk. International Journal of Managerial Finance.

Lind, Lotta, Miia Pirttilä, Sari Viskari, Florian Schupp, and Timo Kärri. 2012. Working capital management in the automotive industry:Financial value chain analysis. Journal of Purchasing and Supply Management 18: 92–100.

Lu, Li, Junlin Peng, Jing Wu, and Yi Lu. 2021. Perceived impact of the Covid-19 crisis on SMEs in different industry sectors: Evidence from Sichuan, China. International Journal of Disaster risk reduction 55: 102085.

Madhou, Ashwin, Imad Moosa, and Vikash ramiah. 2015. Working capital as a determinant of corporate profitability. review of Pacific Basin Financial Markets and Policies 18: 1550024.

Marvel, Howard P., and Huanxing Yang. 2008. Group purchasing, nonlinear tari_s, and oligopoly. International Journal of Industrial Organization 26: 1090–105.

Moradi, Mahdi, Mahdi Salehi, Hossein Tarighi, and Mahdi Saravani. 2020. Audit adjustments and corporate financing: Evidence from Iran. Journal of Accounting in Emerging Economies.

Mun, Sung Gyun, and SooCheong Shawn Jang. 2015. Working capital, cash holding, and profitability of restaurant firms. International Journal of Hospitality Management 48: 1–11.

Nollet, Jean, and Martin Beaulieu. 2005. Should an organisation join a purchasing group? Supply Chain Management 10: 11–17.

Nollet, Jean, Martin Beaulieu, and Nathalie Fabbe-Costes. 2017. The impact of performance measurement on purchasing group dynamics: The Canadian experience. Journal of Purchasing and Supply Management 23: 17–27.

Nowakowska-Grunt, Joanna, Anna Kowalczyk, and Henryk Wojtaszek. 2018. Prospects for development of the SME sector in Poland in the, field of government's policy towards small and medium-sized enterprises. World Scientific News 103: 234–44.

Oseifuah, Emmanuel. 2018. Global financial crisis, working capital management and profitability of non-financial firms listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange, South Africa. Academy of Entrepreneurship Journal 24: 1–2.

Popescu, Cristina raluca Gh, and Gheorghe N. Popescu. 2019. An Exploratory Study Based on a Questionnaire Concerning Green and Sustainable Finance, Corporate Social responsibility, and Performance: Evidence from the romanian Business Environment. Journal of risk and Financial Management 12: 162.

Prempeh, Kwadwo Boateng, and Godfred Peprah-Amankona. 2019. Does working capital management affect Profitability of Ghanaian manufacturing firms? Journal of Advanced Studies in Finance 10: 22–33.

Salehi, Mahdi, Hossein Tarighi, and Samaneh Safdari. 2018. The relation between corporate governance mechanisms, executive compensation and audit fees. Management research review.

Salehi, Mahdi, Nadia Mahdavi, Saeed Zarif Agahi Dari, and Hossein Tarighi. 2019. Association between the availability of financial resources and working capital management with stock surplus returns in Iran. International Journal of Emerging Markets. Salehi, Mahdi, Mahmoud Lari DashtBayaz, Somayeh Hassanpour, and Hossein Tarighi. 2020. The effect of managerial overconfidence on the conditional conservatism and real earnings management. Journal of Islamic Accounting and Business research.

Sandberg, Erik, and Carlos Mena. 2015. Exploring strategic strengths and weakness of retail purchasing groups. The International review of retail, Distribution and Consumer research 25: 276–97.

Schilling, George. 1996. Working capital's role in maintaining corporate liquidity. TMA Journal 16: 4–7.

Schotanus, Fredo, and Jan Telgen. 2007. Developing a typology of organizational forms of cooperative purchasing. Journal of Purchasing and Supply Management 13: 53–68.

Singh, Harsh Pratap, Satish Kumar, and Sisira Colombage. 2017. Working capital management and firm profitability: A meta-analysis.Qualitative research in Financial Markets.

Song, Hyoung Ju, Jihwan Yeon, and Seoki Lee. 2021. Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic: Evidence from the US restaurant industry.International Journal of Hospitality Management 92: 102702.

Talwar, Manish, Shalini Talwar, Puneet Kaur, Naliniprava Tripathy, and Amandeep Dhir. 2021. Has financial attitude impacted the trading activity of retail investors during the COVID-19 pandemic? Journal of retailing and Consumer Services 58: 102341.

Tandoh, Jacob Kplorla. 2020. Working Capital Management, and Economic Policy Uncertainty. Electronic Theses and Dissertations.

Thompson, Christopher Glen, rae Seon Kim, Ariel M. Aloe, and Betsy Jane Becker. 2017. Extracting the variance inflation factor and other multicollinearity diagnostics from typical regression results. Basic and Applied Social Psychology 39: 81–90.

Tsuruta, Daisuke. 2019. Working capital management during the global financial crisis: Evidence from Japan. Japan and the World Economy 49: 206–19.

Vahid, Taghizadeh Khanqah, Ghanavati Elham, Akbari khosroshahi Mohsen, and Ebrati Mohammadreza. 2012. Working capital management and corporate performance: Evidence from iranian companies. Procedia Social and Behavioral Sciences 62: 1313–18.

Weinraub, Herbert J., and Sue Visscher. 1998. Industry practice relating to aggressive conservative working capital policies. Journal of Financial and Strategic Decision 11: 11–18.

Wójcik-Jurkiewicz, Magdalena, and Beata Sadowska. 2018. Non-financial reporting Standards and Evaluation of Their Use Illustrated with Example of Polish Listed Companies. European Journal of Service Management 27: 539–45.

Wójcik-Jurkiewicz, Magdalena, Marzena Czarnecka, Grzegorz Kinelski, Beata Sadowska, and Katarzyna Bili'nska-reformat. 2021.

Determinants of Decarbonisation in the Transformation of the Energy Sector: The Case of Poland. Energies 14: 1217.

Yeboah, Benjamin, and Samuel Kwaku Agyei. 2012. Working capital management and cash holdings of banks in Ghana. European Journal of Business and Management 4: 120–30.

Zimon, Dominik. 2015. Impact of the implementation of quality management system on operating cost for small and medium-sized business organizations a_liated to a purchasing group. International Journal for Quality research 9: 551–64.

Zimon, Grzegorz. 2020a. An Analysis of Working Capital Management Strategy in Small Enterprises Operating within Group Purchasing Organizations. In Eurasian Economic Perspectives. Cham: Springer, pp. 103–11.

Zimon, Grzegorz. 2020b. Issues of financial liquidity of small and medium-sized trading companies: A case study from Poland. Entrepreneurship and Sustainability Issues 8: 363.

Zimon, Grzegorz, and robert Dankiewicz. 2020. Trade Credit Management Strategies in SMEs and the COVID-19 Pandemic—A Case of Poland. Sustainability 12: 6114.

Zimon, Grzegorz, and Dominik Zimon. 2020. The Impact of Purchasing Group on the Profitability of Companies Operating in the renewable Energy Sector—The Case of Poland. Energies 13: 6588.

Appendix 1

Bindura University of Science Education

P.Bag 9055 Bindura

4 Febгuary 2014

Dear Sir/ Madam

RE: RESEARCH PROJECT ASSISTANCE

My name is Felix Tanaka Gomwe. I do hereby apply for permission to carry out research in your Organization. My research topic is entitled: -"An analysis of the effectiveness of working capital management in gas industries. A case study of BOC gases."

The research project is done in partial fulfilment of the requirements of the Bachelor of Accountancy Honours Degree. The data will solely be used for academic purposes and a high level of confidentiality shall be maintained over the data. If you have any queries, please do not hesitate to contact me on 0715789560, or email felexgomwe@gmail.com or the Department of Accounting Chairperson.

I thank you for your time and your cooperation.

Yours faithfully

Felix Tanaka Gomwe

Appendix 2
<u>Ouestionnaire</u>
Details of the responded
1) Branch name
2) Position
3) Duration of employment 0-5yrs 6-10yrs 10+
4) Gender male female
Cash management
5) To what extent can you control your cash collections?
Slightly moderately significantly no control
6) Which strategies do you employ to ensure speedy cash collections?
Lock box system Concentration banking
Other (specify)
7) Do you use any cash management strategies like the Miller-Orr and Baumol models?
Yes No
a) If yes how relevant are they?
8) Do you have a minimum cash holding level?
Yes No
a) If yes what do you do with the excess cash?

9) How do you manage your cash to ensure there is enough to cover unexpected expenditure?

10)	How your	often depart	do ment?	you	do	cash	flow	fогеса	sts	in	
11)	On a scale	e of 1-1	0 how	do you	find yo	uг cash :	flow foi	recasts t	to be acc	curate?	
Inventory											
12)	Do why?	you	have	a	minir	num	stock	holdin	g	policy	and
13)	Which sy	stem do	you us	se to ma	anage y	our inve	entory?				
ABC syste	m 🔲		JIT			EOQ					
Other (spe	cify)										
14)	What	eleme	nts	consti	itutes	уоиг	holdin	g	costs		
15)	What	eleme	nts	const	itute	уоиг	саггуі	ng	costs?		
16)	How	do	you	mana	ge	the	two	above			
17)	What pro	blems d	o you d	encount	er in tr	ying to 1	manage	invento	гу if an	y?	

Debtors

18) Do you have a credit control department within your organization?

Yes	No					
19) How often do	you chase up on pa	yments?				
Weekly for	Weekly fortnightly monthly 20)					
Which method do	Which method do you use to follow up on payments?					
relephone visits to customers email						
Other (Specify)						
21) What problems do you encounter in trying to manage your receivables?						
Creditors						
22) On average	22) On average what are the credit terms offered by your suppliers?					
COD 1	5 days	30 days] 60 days +			
23) How ofte	en and for	how long	do you	delay p	payments?	
24) Do your cu	ustomers offer you	discounts for	early payment	?		
Yes		No 🗌				
25) What problems do you encounter in managing your creditors?						
Credit extension in 26) Are you still e	n a hyperinflational extending credit to	ry environmer all your credit	nt t customers as	usual?		
Yes		No 🗌				
27) If it is a no please state the reason why						

28) Are there any problems you are encountering in managing working capital due to inflation?

Covid	l-19 and working	g capital	
29) A	re you familiar	with the covid-19 pan	demic?
Yes		No	
30) W	as the company	fully operational dur	ing the covid-19 heat period?
Yes		No	
31) If	`it's a no, how w	vere you operating?	
32) W	That was the imp	pact of the covid-19 p	andemic on your operations in terms of sales and

stock quantities in general?

Appendix 3 INTERVIEWS

Interview questions to the credit controller.

- 1. What challenges does BOC Gases face in managing components of working capital?
- 2. What system do you have in managing your accounts receivables?
- 3. What is the impact of inflation in credit extension and recovery?
- 4. Were there any notable changes on accounts receivables during the covid-19 pandemic?
- 5. Do you have set credit limits for your customers and how do you categorize them?

Interview questions to the stores controller

- 1. Do you have an inventory management system in place?
- 2. What are the most significant problems you face in managing your inventory on a regular basis?
- 3. What is the impact of inflation on inventory management?
- 4. Were there any notable changes on inventory management during the covid-19 pandemic?

Interview Questions

- 1) What components constitute your working capital?
- 61

2) Do you use ratio analysis to measure your working capital efficiency and if so how effective are they?

3) Have you ever experienced liquidity problems?

b) If answer to 3 above is yes what caused it and how did you remedy the situation?

c) If answer to 3 above is no how you have done it (strengths of the system you are using)

4) How do you finance your current assets?

- 5) Before the introduction of the multi-currency i.e. during the hyperinflation periods how did you manage particularly your cash knowing that it could be valueless the following day?
- 6) In general what do you think are the causes of poor performance with regard to working capital and how can these problems be mitigated?

⁷⁾ Any word of encouragement to the firms out there on how they can manage their working capital?
ORIGINALITY REPORT



www.slideshare.net 7 Internet Source	1%
Submitted to Universiti Teknologi Malaysia	<1.
8 Student Paper	▲ 1
9 Submitted to Higher Education	
CommissionPakistan	<1%
www.termpaperwarehouse.com 10 Internet Source	<1%
Submitted to Buckinghamshire Chilterns	<1%
University College Student Paper	
baixardoc.com 12 Internet Source	<1%
Submitted to British School of Commerce	-<1%
Colombo Student Paper	

www.coursehero.com 14 Internet Source	<1%
Submitted to University of the Western Cape 15 Student Paper	<1%
es.scribd.com 16 Internet Source	<1%
Submitted to Amity University	<1%
andcapital.com 18 Internet Source	<1%
ebin.pub 19 Internet Source	<1%
inet.vidyasagar.ac.in:8080 20 Internet Source	<1%